

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 13 NOVEMBER 2019 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN.

Present:

Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe MBE (Chairman), Cllr Derek Brown OBE (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Andrew Bryant, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Tony Trotman, Cllr Fred Westmoreland and Cllr Stewart Palmen (Substitute)

Also Present:

Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Toby Sturgis and Cllr Allison Bucknell

55 **Apologies**

An apology for absence was received from Cllr Sarah Gibson, who was substituted by Cllr Stewart Palmen.

56 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

Resolved:

To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 11 September 2019.

57 **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

58 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman's announcements.

59 **Public Participation**

There were no questions or statements submitted.

60 Planning Appeals and Updates

An update on planning appeals and decisions was received during the period 30 August and 1 November 2019.

It was noted that planning appeals had been lodged in respect of applications at Startley near Chippenham and also at Hilmarton. No planning appeals had been decided during this period.

Resolved:

To note the contents of the update.

61 <u>18/02037/FUL - Land at Rawlings Farm and Upper Peckingell Farm,</u> <u>Chippenham</u>

The Committee received a presentation from the Head of Development Management which set out the main issues in respect of the application. The purpose of the report was to consider the proposals in the context of the Development Plan and all other material considerations and to consider the recommendation that the application be approved subject to conditions.

Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they heard a statement from Julie Thomas of Framptons, the agent, in support of the application.

Members then heard the views of Cllr Howard Greenman, the local Member, who supported the views of Langley Burrell Parish Council and considered that the temporary haul road from Upper Peckingell Farm would have a colossal impact on the village. This haul road and associated roads were single track and not suitable for the amount of traffic that would be using them. It was acknowledged that there would be some inconvenience but reference was made to condition 3 of the proposed permission which stated that a Construction Traffic Management Plan should be submitted and approved prior to the commencement of the development. It was noted that this Plan would necessitate the provision of passing places on these roads.

After some discussion,

Resolved:

To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans and documents:

Highways Technical Note 2 Dated 30th August 2019. 5609-ATR-13-B (1 OF 2) Dated June 2019 5609-ATR-013-B (2 OF 2) Dated June 2019 5609-SK-020-B (1 OF 2) 5609-SK-020-B (2 OF 2) 70005609-FIG 1 (Bridge Construction Traffic Routes) 70005690-SK-021-A (1)

70005690-SK-021-A (2) Received 6/9/19
Tree Survey AIA & Method Statement 1st March 2019
Noise Assessment and Management Plan Received 08/03/2019
5609-GA-0009-B
BRL-PL151
BRL-PL200 Plant Schedule
Topographic Survey BRL PL150 (21/01/19)
BRL PL152 Plant Schedule
CB-SK-011 P01
245988-ARP-DRG-EST-00001 P03
5609-GA-005 REV A
5609-GA-007 REV A Received 29/02/2019

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. Prior to the commencement of the development a Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The CTMP shall set out the proposed programme for the construction of the works, the forecast number and timing of lorry movements associated with each element of the programme, methods to be employed on the site to ensure that detritus from the site is not deposited on the public roads, temporary road works to mitigate damage to the existing highway structure (carriageway and verges), construction traffic signage on the proposed haul route from the B4069, lorry and car parking on the site to accommodate construction traffic. The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved CTMP at all times.

REASON: To ensure that a reasonable degree of control is exercised over construction traffic during the construction period, and to mitigate the impact of such traffic on the local communities affected.

4. Prior to the commencement of the development there shall be a full condition survey of the haul road between the B4069 junction with Maud Heaths Causeway at Langley Burrell to Upper Peckingell Farm, which shall be submitted for approval by the local planning authority no later than 14 days prior to the commencement of works. The survey shall detail all existing defects on the route, both in written and image form, in accordance with a scheme which shall first have been agreed by the local planning authority. When works have been completed, a further survey shall be undertaken and submitted to the local planning authority within 1 month of completion. Within one month of that survey being approved, a scheme of remedial works shall be submitted for approval, setting out detailed proposals for remediation of any damage and including a timeframe for implementation. The agreed works must be completed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the approved timescale.

REASON: Pre-works and post-works surveys are required in order to establish the appropriate levels of remediation required to damage

reasonably attributable to the construction traffic, and potentially enforced by the highway authority under the provisions of s59 Highways Act 1980.

5. Construction traffic to the site by way of the identified haul route Route Option 2 via Peckingell Lane shall be limited to use by construction traffic needing access to construct the site haul road, construction compounds, surface water attenuation pond and the railway bridge only. The site haul road shall not be used for the haulage of materials required in connection with the site's permanent distributor road, which shall not be commenced until such time as the Parsonage Way railway bridge, or an approved alternative access from Darcy Close, can be used as a site haul route. The temporary haul road shall be removed in its entirety within 4 weeks of the bridge having been provided with a temporary road surface capable of carrying construction traffic. No construction materials of any sort shall be removed from the site via Peckingell Lane.

REASON: In order to minimise the amount of heavy traffic using what in other circumstances would be regarded as inappropriate on such narrow roads, in the interests of highway safety, and in the interests of the amenity of the Langley Burrell and Peckingell communities.

6. Prior to the commencement of the Cocklebury Link Road Phase 1 full details of the internal permanent site roads connecting to the Link Road shall first have been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. Details shall include road construction details, vertical and horizontal alignment, drainage, lighting, signing, marking and all associated roadworks required to secure an adoptable distributor road. The roads shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In order to ensure that internal site roads are appropriate to serve their intended function.

7. The bridge when completed shall only be used by vehicles associated with the construction of development allocated under Policy CH2 of the Chippenham Sites Allocation DPD, or by occupiers of the development following the provision of vehicle turning facilities, the details of which shall have been first submitted to and approved by the LPA.

REASON: In order to avoid unwanted encampment or parking in an area where a formal turning facility will not be provided, and in the interests of highway safety.

8. Prior to the commencement of the bridge/rail crossing hereby permitted details of the structural design of the bridge, including cladding and exposed surface materials, arrangements for surface water drainage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The proposed application contains insufficient information and the matter raised above require to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area.

10. No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on site, and; no equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought on to site for the purpose of development, until a Tree Protection Plan showing the exact position of each tree/s and their protective fencing in accordance with British Standard 5837: 2012: "Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction -Recommendations"; has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and;

The protective fencing shall be erected in accordance with the approved details. The protective fencing shall remain in place for the entire development phase and until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Such fencing shall not be removed or breached during construction operations.

No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree/s be topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars. Any topping or lopping approval shall be carried out in accordance British Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work – Recommendations" or arboricultural techniques where it can be demonstrated to be in the interest of good arboricultural practise.

If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted at the same place, at a size and species and planted at such time, that must be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

No concrete, oil, cement, bitumen or other chemicals shall be mixed or stored within 10 metres of the trunk of any tree or group of trees to be retained on the site or adjoining land.

[In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars; and paragraphs above shall have effect until the expiration of five years from the first occupation or the completion of the development, whichever is the later].

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to enable the Local Planning Authority to ensure the retention of trees on the site in the interests of visual amenity.

11. No works shall commence on the construction of the railway bridge until details of storm water drainage incorporating sustainable drainage details have been submitted to and approved by the LPA. The storm water drainage arrangements shall be completed in accordance with the

approved details prior to the first length of distributor road being brought into use. The storm water drainage arrangements shall be completed in accordance with the approved details prior to the railway bridge being first brought into use. No works shall commence on the length of distributor road until details of the storm water drainage incorporating sustainable drainage details have been submitted to and approved by the LPA.

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained.

12. Prior to construction of any element of this application, an Ecological Construction Method Statement will be submitted to the LPA for approval. It will include all elements of the construction of the haul road, taking account of any phasing and temporary measures. The additional planting and any other features provided either as mitigation or enhancement for biodiversity must be integrated into the Landscape & Ecological Management Plan for the wider site and must be submitted for approval prior to the start of construction. Such features must be clearly labelled on the drawings as ecological mitigation or enhancement, with specific management prescribed.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure adequate protection, mitigation and compensation for protected species, priority species and priority habitats.

13. No development shall commence until:

- a. A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The programme of investigation should be implemented in accordance with the scope of works set out in the approved Framework Archaeological Mitigation Strategy; and
- b. The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out in accordance with the approved details as set out in the Framework Archaeological Mitigation Strategy and the agreed Written Scheme of Investigation.

REASON: To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological interest.

14. No development shall commence on site until a construction management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of the measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the emission of noise, vibration

and dust during the demolition and/or construction phase of the development. It shall include details of the following:

- i. The means of foul water disposal from the construction compound welfare facilities;
- ii. The cutting or other processing of building materials on site;
- iii. The transportation and storage of waste and building materials;
- iv. The recycling of waste materials (if any);
- v. The loading and unloading of equipment and materials
- vi. The location and use of generators and temporary site accommodation;
- vii. Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential properties);
- viii. Hours of Construction.

The construction/demolition phase of the development will be carried out fully in accordance with the construction management plan at all times.

REASON: In the interests of residential amenity

15. No burning of waste or other materials shall take place on the development site at any time during development.

REASON: In the interests of residential amenity

16. Control of noise from construction work for the bridge and haul road and haul road operations shall be undertaken in accordance with BS8225 and the recommendations of report ref. 19-031 'Inacoustic' Noise Assessment & Management Plan Information dated 26th February 2019.

A suitably qualified person must undertake regular noise monitoring during construction works and operation of the haul road and keep a written record that is available to the LPA upon request.

Any planned departure from these requirements must be reported to the LPA in advance of works being undertaken and a scheme of mitigation agreed with the LPA.

REASON: In the interests of residential amenity.

- 17. Prior to the commencement of the bridge/rail crossing and Cocklebury Link Road Phase 1 hereby approved a scheme of soft landscaping related to that element of the development shall been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:-
 - full details of any tree to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of development;
 - a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and planting sizes and planting densities;
 - retained historic landscape features and proposed restoration,

- where relevant.
- details and location of any new or replacement trees, of a size and species and in a location to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted in accordance with BS3936 (Parts 1 and 4), BS4043 and BS4428

Prior to the removal of the Haul Road and Construction Compound a scheme of remedial soft landscaping shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:-

- a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and planting sizes and planting densities;
- retained historic landscape features and proposed restoration, where relevant.
- details and location of any new or replacement trees, of a size and species and in a location to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted in accordance with BS3936 (Parts 1 and 4), BS4043 and BS4428

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing important landscape features.

18. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping for the bridge shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the first use of the bridge or the substantial completion of the bridge whichever is the sooner; All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping for the Cocklebury Link Road Phase 1 shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the first use of the Cocklebury Link Road Phase 1 or the substantial completion of the Cocklebury Link Road Phase 1 whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing important landscape features.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to the sewer in question.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such works commence.

If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they are to be found.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

The proposed bridge will be subject to a legal agreement in respect of its adoption as highway and its future maintenance; the agreement will be made under the provisions of s38 and s278 of Highways Act, and the agreement should be concluded prior to the commencement of the works. The agreement will include a specific commitment to meet the costs of remediating unacceptable differential settlement at the bridge approaches, for a period of at least ten years.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

Any works to, or within 8 Metres of a watercourse will require LDC which has a separate application process. Where the works may constitute a change to a flow rate into a watercourse, early application to prevent clashes with planning permissions/conditions is recommended

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

The available space at the eastern end of Parsonage Way for use by construction traffic is limited. It is likely that land outside the highway boundary might be required if any extensive operations are undertaken from the Parsonage Way side of the railway. The road itself will have to remain open to accommodate the traffic associated with operations at the Council depot, Bulk Hardware and Wavin. Occupation of any highway space will have to be agreed with Wiltshire Streetworks.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development. development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to Council's Website www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit yinfrastructurelevy.

62 <u>19/03329/DP3 - Melksham House, 27 Market Place, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 6ES</u>

The Committee received a presentation from the Head of Development Management which set out the main issues in respect of the application. The purpose of the report was to consider the proposals in the context of the Development Plan and all other material considerations and to consider the recommendation that the application be approved subject to conditions.

Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they heard statements from members of the public as follows:-

Louise Cary, Head of Service Communications, Leisure Operations, who spoke in support of the proposal

Adrian Abbs, DKA architects, who spoke in support of the proposal

Cllr Allison Bucknell, Cabinet Member for Communities, who spoke in support of the proposal

Cllr Paul Carter, representing Melksham Without Parish Council, who spoke in support of the proposal

Members then heard the views of Cllr Jon Hubbard, the local Member, who supported the proposal. He expressed disappointment at the need to fell certain trees but was pleased that new ones would be planted. He also expressed some concern at the lack of car parking in the vicinity of the site and pointed out that it was very close to the centre of Melksham. He considered that a Parking Plan was required as it was important that local residents were not inconvenienced by cars obstructing their homes.

After some discussion,

Resolved:

To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:-

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until proposals for the re-use and refurbishment of Melksham House have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The proposals shall include a timetable for their implementation and the approved use and any necessary associated works. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approve details.

REASON: To secure a viable future for the main listed building within the curtilage of which the campus works are proposed, to ensure that the designated heritage asset is not adversely affected by the proposed works

No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on site until a Construction Management Plan has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Construction Management Plan shall include:

The laying out and construction of the construction access including the surfacing of at least the first 20 metres of the access in a well bound consolidated material (not loose stone or gravel).

The cutting back of vegetation at the construction access to achieve visibility splays of 2.4 x 160 metres in each direction to the nearside road edge.

Measures to prevent excessive deliveries occurring at peak hour traffic times.

A scheme of Traffic Sign Regulation and General Direction chapter 8 roadwork signing to warn of the construction access.

Signing and measures to achieve safe use of footpath MELK21 where the end of it coincides with the construction access.

Measures to prevent excessive mud being carried onto the highway and a scheme for regular road sweeping of the highway to clean any mud deposits that do occur.

The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner and in the interest of highway safety

4 No development shall commence on site other than demolitions until details of any temporary hoardings required during the construction phase on the site alongside provisions for their removal have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken without harm to the historic buildings.

No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on site until an Environmental Management Plan for both the demolition and construction phases have been submitted to and approved in writing. The plan shall include how dust and noise will be controlled, hours of demolition and construction activity and the location of noisy equipment (generators etc) to ensure minimal disturbance to local residents. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner and to ensure impact on neighbours is minimised.

No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the access / driveway), incorporating sustainable

drainage details together with all third party approvals to permit crossing third party land and discharges plus removal of storm water from foul drainage systems, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then not be first occupied until the surface water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of ensuring that the development can be adequately drained.

No development shall commence on site until details of the raised landscaped mound identified on drawing annotated as proposed site plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of ensuring an appropriate landscape boundary on the site.

No development shall commence until a written programme of archaeological investigation, which should include on-site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing and archiving of the results, has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority;

The approved programme of archaeological work shall be

carried out in accordance with the agreed programme, and in accordance with the timetable agreed as part of the written programme of investigation.

REASON: To enable the recording of any matters of archaeological interest

9 Prior to the construction access being brought into use, a temporary traffic order to prohibit right turning vehicle movements into and out from the access shall have been made and implemented. The order shall remain in use for the duration of the use of the construction access.

REASON: In the interest of highway safety and to ensure minimal disruption on the A350.

There shall be no development above slab level of the new campus building hereby approved until details and samples of the materials to be used for the external walls, roofs, windows and doors have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and the Listed Buildings.

- There shall be no development above slab level of the campus building hereby approved until a hard and soft landscaping scheme and implementation programme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, details of which shall include:
 - indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on the land;
 - details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of development;

- all species, planting sizes and planting densities, spread of all trees and hedgerows within or overhanging the site, in relation to the proposed buildings, roads, and other works;
- finished levels and contours of the land;
- means of enclosure;
- car parking layouts;
- other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;
- hard surfacing materials;
- minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc);

All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and shall be completed prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with a programme agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the protection of existing important landscape features.

12 The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until details of the noise levels of all plant and equipment associated with the campus building hereby approved has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted information

should demonstrate that all plant and equipment is below 5dB below the background at the nearest residential properties. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner and to ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the area.

No work to the footpaths, access roads, parking and pedestrian areas shall commence on site until details and samples of the materials to be used for these have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and the Listed Buildings

14 No external lighting shall be installed on the car park serving 52 spaces adjoining the boundary of 30 and 32 Orchard gardens until plans showing the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, cowls, illumination levels and light in accordance with the spillage appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institute of Lighting Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", and details of how the light will impact on the neighbouring properties has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details and no additional external lighting shall be installed.

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the adjoining neighbours and to minimise unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site.

15 The 24 cycle spaces allocated on the proposed site plan shall not be installed until details of how they will be covered (including materials and colour) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interest of future users and highway safety

The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until a car parking management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in full in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of achieving reasonable availability of on-site car parking spaces for users of the proposed development.

17 The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until the public footpath (MELK 20) running pass the campus building has been widened, resurfaced with tarmacadam and new lighting installed all in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In the interests of safe and convenient pedestrian access to the proposed development.

The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until the vehicle parking and turning areas and cycle areas have been provided in accordance with the approved details. The areas shall then be maintained and kept available for the parking and turning of vehicles and cycles in perpetuity.

REASON: In the interest of safe and convenient operation of the development and to promote sustainable patterns of travel to and from the development.

The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until a landscape management plan, including long-term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas (other than small, privately owned, domestic gardens) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The landscape management plan shall be carried out as approved in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and] the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure the proper management of the landscaped areas in the interests of visual amenity.

The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until the first floor windows in the southern elevation serving the fitness suite shall be non opening and glazed with obscure glass only (to an obscurity level of no less then level 4) and shall be permanently maintained as such in perpetuity.

REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy.

The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until a scheme for public art within the site alongside a timetable for its implementation has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory environment for future users

The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until the boundary treatment between Cedar Close and the Southern elevation of the campus building hereby approved and the boundary treatment adjacent to 30-32 Orchard Gardens have been installed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: In in the interest of neighbouring amenity

Within 3 months of the development hereby approved first being put into use the construction access shall be fully and permanently closed to all vehicle movements associated with the construction of the campus building hereby approved, with the grass verge of the A350 being reinstated and the roadside full height kerbs being reinstated across the access position.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety, and the appearance of the area.

Within 6 months of first use of the development hereby approved a full travel plan shall be submitted based on the framework travel plan. The full travel plan when approved shall be implemented including the appointment of a travel plan coordinator for three years from the date of first appointment, provision of wayfinding signs to and from the town centre and rail station, and a contribution towards reprinting of the town

cycle map showing details of the new facility.

REASON: In the interests of promoting sustainable patterns of travel to and from the development.

During the construction phase no machinery shall be operated, no process shall be carried out and no delivery shall be taken or dispatched from the site outside of the following hours; Mon-Fri 07:30 to 18:00, Saturday 08:00 to 13:00, nor anytime on Sundays or public holidays.

REASON: In the interest of neighbouring amenity

The use hereby permitted shall only take place between the hours of 06:00 and 22:00 Mondays to Saturdays and between 07:00 and 22:00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

REASON: To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the area.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with Part 4: Interpretation and Recommendations of the Ecological Appraisal Rev 2 by Clarke Webb Ecology Limited dated 4th July - 26th July 2018.

REASON: In the interest of Ecology

There shall be no burning of any materials on site.

REASON: In the interest of neighbouring amenity

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

Received by the Local Planning Authority on 11th April 2019

site plan building demolitions, site location plan, basement floor plan, site plan - existing, site elevations/sections - existing, building A - existing/demolition social club, building B - existing /demolitions store, building G - existing/demolition, gate posts

Received by the Local Planning Authority on 27th August 2019

southern boundary context studies, proposed site elevations, proposed elevations south and west, proposed elevations north and east, section A-A B-B, proposed site plan, proposed roof plan, proposed first floor, proposed ground floor, Appendix G - External lighting

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

1 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The **CIL Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must** be submitted to Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development. Should development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you

require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to the Council's Website www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy.

- 2 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The applicant is reminded of the need to obtain separate listed building consent for the development hereby approved in addition to this planning permission before works commence on site.
- 3 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer where they are to be found.
- 4 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: The Applicant should note the details contained in the consultation response from Wessex Water dated 14th October 2019.
- 5 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: Historic England would like to be kept informed of progress on the Melksham House project following the January 2020 Cabinet meeting

63 <u>19/03394/LBC - Melksham House, 27 Market Place, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 6ES</u>

The Committee received a short presentation from the Head of Development Management which set out the main issues in respect of the application for Listed Building Consent. The listed building application sought consent to demolish former outbuildings to Melksham House including the former stable block and remnants of garden walls and outbuildings associated with the kitchen garden, together with alterations to the entrance onto the Market Place via the demolition and relocation of one of the separately listed gate piers.

Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions but there were none.

It was noted that no letters of representation had been received from members of the public and no members of the public had registered to make statements at the meeting. However, an objection had been received from the Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings (SPAB) on the grounds that the scale and proximity of the new building would harm the setting of the grade 11 listed house. Furthermore, the proposed landscaping and extent of new car parking around the house would have a detrimental impact to the setting of the house. The Committee was informed that In view of these objections from SPAB, should the Committee resolve to approve the application, it would be necessary to refer the application to the Secretary of State for a final decision.

After some discussion,

Resolved:

To approve the application subject to the following conditions and referral to the Secretary of State.

1 The works for which Listed Building Consent is hereby granted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this consent.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2.

No works shall commence on the garden wall until a schedule of repair/alteration for the kitchen garden wall has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then be carried out in

accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of protecting the listed building and its historic setting.

No works shall commence on the gate pier until a detailed methodology of how it will be relocated has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

> REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the

Local Planning Authority before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of protecting the listed building and its historic setting.

4.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

gate posts P01, Building A - existing/demolition P01, Building B - existing/demolition P01, Building G - existing elevations P01, Site elevations/sections P01, Site plan - existing P03, Site Location Plan P03, Site Plan demolitions P01 all received on 1st April 2019.

64 **Date of Next Meeting**

Resolved:

To note that the next meeting was due to take place on Wednesday 11 December 2019 at County Hall, Trowbridge, starting at 10.30am.

65 **Urgent Items**

There were no urgent items of business.

(Duration of meeting: 10.30 - 11.30 am)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115